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DIRECTORS' REPORT
Dear Shareholders,

Your directors present the Ninth Annual Report along with the audited financial statements for
FY2023.

Company Overview and Operations

The Company operates as an online, one-stop digital marketplace-for all financial needs of the
customers. The Company has partnered with some of the most respected names in the industry
to provide multiple financial product categories spanning across Unsecured and Secured Loans,
Life and General Insurance, Investments, UPI payments and Credit Cards. In addition, the
Company offers digital technology services, primarily in BFSI domain with a portfolio of 6
specializations and more than 30 functional offerings across lending, insurance and
investments. The Company acts as a third-party app provider for UPI payments and facilitates
loans/credit through its lending partners.

The Company is registered with SEBI through its Investment Advisory Department as an
Investment Advisor with registration No. INAOO0016083 and offers various financial products
and services to its customers, through its partners listed on its digital platform.

The Company is also a registered Corporate Agent with IRDAI having registration No. CAO551.
It offers insurance products from its insurance partners to its customers on its digital
marketplace.

Financial Results
The highlights of the financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 are

given below:
(Rs.in crore)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended on ended on
31March 2023 | 31March 2022

Total Income from operations 391.14 207.34
Expenditure excluding depreciation 389.22 262.16
Depreciation 53.89 32.77
Profit / (Loss) before Tax (51.97) (87.59)
Provision for Tax - Current - -
Deferred - -
Profit / (Loss) After Tax (51.97) (87.59)
Other comprehensive income - -
Actuarial gain/(losses) (0.37) 0.91
Tax on above - -
Other comprehensive income for the year (0.37) 0.91
(net of tax)

Total comprehensive income / (Loss) for the year | (52.34) | (86.68)

Dividend and transfer to reserves

Considering the operating and accumulated losses, no dividend is being recommended, nor any

amount is proposed for transfer to reserves.
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Share Capital
During the year under review, there was no change in share capital of the Company.

As on 31March 2023, the authorised share capital of the Company was Rs. 3.50 crore comprising
of 35,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- while the issued, subscribed and paid-up
equity share stood at Rs 3.12 crore, represented by 31,20,000 equity shares of face value
Rs.10/-. As on 31 March 2023, Bajaj Finserv Limited and Bajaj Finance Limited hold 80.13% and
19.87% of the share capital respectively.

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares, convertible
securities, shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares nor has it granted any stock
options. As on 31 March 2023, the Company has an outstanding convertible loan amounting to
Rs. 8.03 crore.

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or a joint venture company. Accordingly,
the requirement of attaching form AOC-1is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is an unlisted non- material subsidiary of Bajaj Finserv Limited (BFS).

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Change in Directorate:

During the year under review, following changes have taken place in the directorate:

1. The shareholders, on the recommendation of the Board, at the annual general meeting
held on 25 July 2022, appointed Mayur Patwardhan (DIN: 07539410) and Mayur Chokshi
(DIN: 01238535) as non-executive and independent directors for a period of 5
consecutive years with effect from 28 March 2022. In the opinion of the Board, both the
independent directors are persons of integrity and possesses relevant expertise and
experience. They have registered themselves in the Independent Director’s databank of
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs as required under Rule 6(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. They possess the necessary
proficiency in terms of explanation to Rule 8(5) (iiia) of Companies (Account) Rules, 2014
(as amended).

2. Ajay Sathe (DIN: 05166137), Ganesh Mohan (DIN: 07985728) and Sourabh Chatterjee
(DIN: 07952127) resigned as Non - executive Directors of the Company with effect from
close of business hours of 30 November 2022.

3. Anish Amin (DIN: 00070679) was appointed as an Additional, Non-Executive Non -
Independent Director, by the Board at its meeting held on 25 November 2022 with effect
from 1 December 2022.

4. Rakesh Bhatt (DIN: 02531541) resigned from the office of Chairman and as a Non -
Executive Director of the Company with effect from close of business hours of 9 March
2023.

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board at its meeting

held on 25 April 2023, appointed Jasmine Chaney (DIN: 07082359) as an Additional, Non -
Executive and Independent Director of the Company with effect from 1 May 2023 for a period of
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5 consecutive years. In the opinion of the Board, she is a person of integrity and possesses
relevant expertise and experience. She has also registered herself in the Independent Director’s
databank of Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs as required under Rule 6(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. She will be undertaking an online
proficiency self-assessment test, as required under the Rule 6(4) of the said rules, within the
prescribed timelines.

At the same meeting, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Ashish Panchal (DIN: 10106286) was elevated to the position of Whole-Time Director (WTD)
effective 1 May 2023 for a period of 3 years, subject to the approval of shareholders at the
ensuing annual general meeting. He continues to be the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the
Company. He was also designated as the whole-time key managerial personnel of the Company.

Ashish Panchal, WTD and CEO, continues to be in employment of Bajaj Finance Limited (BFL) and
is on deputation to the Company. Being eligible, he is in receipt of stock options from BFL.

The Board comprises of persons with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves the
governance and strategic needs of the Company and its stakeholders. The present composition
broadly meets this objective. The directors are persons of eminence in areas such as business,
industry, finance etc., and bring with them experience/skills which add value to the performance
of the Board and Company, as a whole. The directors are selected purely on the basis of merit
with no discrimination on race, colour, religion, gender, or nationality.

A brief profile of directors is available on the website at www.bajajfinservmarkets.in/aboutus

Retirement by Rotation:

Sujith Sukumaran (DIN: 09234416), being the only director liable to retirement by rotation, offers
himself for re-appointment at the ensuing annual general meeting (AGM). The information as
required to be disclosed in case of re-appointment of the director is provided in the Notice of
the ensuing AGM.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

The Board, at its meeting held on 25 April 2023, approved the appointment of Namrata Surana
Shah (ACS: 52469) as the Company Secretary and Whole Time Key Managerial Personnel
effective 1 May 2023.

Declaration by Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have submitted a declaration of independence, stating that they
meet the criteria of independence provided under section 149(6) of the Act. They have also
confirmed compliance with the provisions of rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and
Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of their name in the
databank of independent directors.

Annual Return
A copy of the Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of the

Act in the prescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed
at www.bajajfinservmarkets.in/legal-and-compliance/MGT-9
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Number of meetings of the Board

During the FY2023, the Board of Directors met five times, viz., 25 April 2022, 25 July 2022,
11 October 2022, 25 November 2022 and 25 January 2023. The time gap between any two
consecutive meetings has been less than one hundred and twenty days.

Directors’ responsibility statement

In accordance with the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, the directors, to
the best of their knowledge and belief, state that:

0] in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of
the loss of the Company for FY2023;

(i)  they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

(iv)  the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

(v) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that, to the best of their knowledge, such systems were adequate
and were operating effectively.

Audit Committee
In terms of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, an Audit Committee comprising of three non-
executive directors was constituted effective 28 September 2022. During the year under review,

the Committee met twice i.e. on 11 October 2022 and 25 January 2023.

As on 31 March 2023, the composition of the Committee was as under:

Sr. No. | Name of Director Category
1 Mayur Patwardhan Chairman, Non - Executive, Independent Director
2 Mayur Chokshi Non - Executive, Independent Director

Anish Amin was co-opted as member of the Audit Committee effective 7 April 2023.

All members of the Committee are non-executive directors possessing ability to read and
understand, the financial statement.

The terms of reference of the Committee, inter alia, cover recommendation for appointment,
remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company, review and monitor the
performance and independence of auditors, effectiveness of audit process, examination of the
financial statements and auditors report thereon, approval and subsequent modification of
transactions with related parties, scrutiny of inter corporate loans and investment, evaluation
of internal financial controls and risk management systems, monitoring end use of funds raised
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through public offers and any other function as may be prescribed by the Board from time to
time.

The Board accepted all recommendations, made during the year, by the Audit Committee.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee

In terms of section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee comprising of three non-executive directors has been constituted effective
28 September 2022. During the year under review, the Committee met once on 25 November
2022.

As on 31 March 2023, the composition of the Committee was as under:

Sr.No. | Name of Director Category

1. Anish Amin* Chairman, Non - Executive, Director

2. Mayur Chokshi* Non - Executive, Independent Director
3. Mayur Patwardhan Non - Executive Independent Director

*stepped down as the Chairman of the Committee effective from 25 April 2023 close of business
hours;
**Mayur Chokshi was appointed as the Chairman of the said Committee effective 26 April 2023.

The terms of reference of the Committee, inter alia, cover identification of persons who are
qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance
with the criteria laid down, recommendation to the Board regarding their appointment and
removal, formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of a director and recommend to the Board policy relating to the remuneration for
the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees, specification of the manner for
effective evaluation of the performance of Board, its committees and individual directors to be
carried out either by the Board, by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an
independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance, and any other
function as may be prescribed by the Board from time to time.

Also, the Board accepted all recommendations, made during the year, by the NRC.
Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration

On recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), the Board has
framed a remuneration policy. This policy, inter-alia, provides:

(a) The criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of directors;
and (b) Policy on remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

The policy is directed towards a compensation philosophy and structure that will reward and
retain talent; and provides for a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and
long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals.

The remuneration policy is available on the Company’'s website and can be accessed at
www.bajajfinservmarkets.in/content/dam/bajajfinserv/notices/RemunerationPolicy.pdf
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The Independent Directors are paid a sitting fee of Rs. 5,000/- for Board and Committee
meetings attended by them.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments

During FY2023, the shareholders at their AGM held on 25 July 2022, increased the limits for
loans, guarantees and investments under section 186 of the Act, from Rs. 200 crore to Rs. 850
crore.

The Company has not granted any loans or made any investments in or provided any guarantees
or securities under section 186 of the Act.

Employee Stock Option Scheme

Consequent to approval received from the shareholders of Bajaj Finserv Limited, holding
company of the Company at 11™" AGM held on 19 July 2018 and approval received from the
shareholders of the Company at its 4" AGM held on 16 July 2018, the Company approved the
Bajaj Finserv Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme (BFS-ESO0S). The employees of the
Company are also covered under this Scheme. The Company is also the corporate trustee for
the Bajaj Finserv ESOP Trust, formed for managing the stock options granted under BFS ESOS.

The details of options granted by the holding company, exercised by the employees of the
Company, under the aforesaid scheme, during the year under review, are given in the financial
statements which form part of the Annual Report.

Related party transactions

All contracts/arrangement/transactions entered by the Company with related parties during
the year under review were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act including on
arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company under the Act. None
of the transactions required members’ prior approval under the Act.

Details of transactions with related parties during FY2023 are provided in the notes to the
financial statements. There were no transaction requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) of
the Act. Hence, the prescribed Form AOC-2 does not form a part of this report.

Material Changes and Commitments

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of financial year and the date of this Report.

Particulars regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

The information pertaining to the conservation of energy and technology absorption in terms of
section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014
is stated as below:

(a) Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The operations of the Company are not energy-intensive in nature.

Considering the nature of operations, no particulars regarding technology absorption are
required to be given in this Report.
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(b) Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo during the year

The total foreign exchange earnings in FY2023 in terms of actual inflows was NIL as against
NIL during the previous year.

The total foreign exchange outgo in FY2023 in terms of actual outflows amounted to Rs. 3.29
crore, as against Rs 2.19 crore during the previous year.

Risk Management

The Company has putin place an adequate and effective risk reporting system. In the opinion of
the Board, there are no residual risks, which would threaten the existence of the Company.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts

During the year under review, there were no significant or material orders passed by any
regulator or court or tribunal, impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in
future.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with its size, scale
and complexity of operations with reference to its financial statements. These have been
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding recording and providing reliable financials
information, ensuring integrity in conducting business, accuracy and completeness in
maintaining accounting records and prevention and detection of frauds and errors. The Audit
Committee and Board reviewed the said controls and found them in order.

Independent directors’ meeting

Pursuant to the Act, the independent directors must hold at least one meeting in a year without
the presence of non-independent directors and members of the Management. Accordingly,
independent directors of the Company met on 25 January 2023. The independent directors
present elected Mayur Patwardhan as the Chairman for the meeting. Both the independent
directors were present at the meeting.

The independent directors, inter alia:

+ reviewed the performance of non-independent directors and the Board as a whole;

+ noted the report of performance evaluation of the Chairman of the Company for the year
2022-23;

« reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Board, taking into account the views of
non-executive directors; and

+ assessed the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the
Company’s Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonably perform their duties.

Formal annual evaluation

Pursuant to section 178 of the Act, the NRC and Board have decided that the evaluation shall be
carried out by the Board only and NRC will only review its implementation and compliance.

Further, as per Schedule IV of the Act, the performance evaluation of independent directors shall
be done by the entire Board excluding the director being evaluated, on the basis of performance
and fulfilment of criteria of independence and their independence from management.
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On the basis of the report of the performance evaluation, it shall be determined whether to
extend or continue the term of appointment of independent director.

Accordingly, the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own
performance, that of its Committees and Individual directors.

The manner in which formal annual evaluation of performance was carried out by the Board for
the year 2022-23 is given below:

e Based on the criteria for performance evaluation, a questionnaire-cum-rating sheet was
deployed using an IT platform for seeking confidential feedback of the directors with
regard to the performance of the Board, its Committees, Independent directors and
Individual directors.

e From the individual ratings received from the directors, a report on summary of ratings in
respect of performance evaluation for the year 2022-23 and a consolidated report thereof
were arrived at. The aforesaid report was then discussed and noted by the Board at its
meeting held on 25 April 2023.

e The NRC reviewed the implementation and compliance of the performance evaluation at
its meeting held on 25 April 2023 and opined these to be in compliant with applicable
provisions and found it to be satisfactory.

e Based on the aforementioned report and evaluation, the Board determined that the term
of appointment of all independent directors may continue.

e Other than Chairman of NRC, no other director had access to the individual ratings given
by directors.

Whistle blower policy

The Whistle Blower Policy is created with an objective to provide a safe and secured framework
wherein the employee can report those actions, occurrences, events, observations or any
concerns about unethical behaviour, any actual or suspected fraud, violations of legal or
regulatory requirements or Code of Conduct Policy of Company, misrepresentations or any
physiologically adverse work conditions etc. without fear of victimization.

The concerns may be reported through email at bfdlwhistleblower@bajajfinserv.in and shall be
kept confidential. Pursuant to the Whistle Blower Policy, the Internal Complaints Committee is
constituted and complaints, if any, are brought to their attention. The Committee deals with the
same in accordance with the Policy. A register containing all the complaints brought to their
attention and the actions taken and progress status of each complaint is placed annually to the
Board.

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial Standards
on meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) read with the MCA
circulars.

Internal audit is an integral part of corporate governance. The objective of internal audit is to
identify, assess and mitigate risks as well as to evaluate and contribute to the systems of internal
controls and governance processes followed by the Company. Key elements of internal audit are
assurance on controls, governance and compliance, business risk assessment and its mitigation
and process optimization.
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The Audit Committee periodically reviews the internal audit reports and the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal controls. Significant audit observations, corrective and preventive
actions thereon are presented to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis.

Statutory Auditors

Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 25 July 2022, appointed KKC & Associates
LLP (earlier known as Khimji Kunverji & Co. LLP), Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditor
for a term of four years i.e. from the conclusion of 8" AGM till the conclusion of 12" AGM.

The statutory audit report for the FY2023, is unmodified i.e., does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark or disclaimer.

Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to the provisions of section 204 of the Act, and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board at its meeting held on 25 April
2023 appointed Sachin Bhagwat, Practicing Company Secretary (ACS No. A10189, CP N0.6029),
to undertake secretarial audit of the Company for FY2024.

The compliance requirement for secretarial audit was not applicable for FY2023.
Dematerialisation of Shares

In terms of Rule 9A of Companies (Prospectus of Securities) Rules, 2014, the Company has
entered into tripartite agreement with National Securities Depository Ltd (NSDL) and KFin
Technologies Ltd. for admission of its equity shares with NSDL. All equity shares of the Company
are in dematerialized mode. The Company has complied with other conditions prescribed in the
said rule.

As such transfer or any issue of shares of the company will be in dematerialized mode only.

Other Statutory Disclosures

e There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

¢ The financial statements of the Company are placed on the Company’s website in the
Annual Report section at www.bajajfinservmarkets.in/aboutus

e During FY2023, your Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of
sections 73 and 74 of the Act read together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014 as amended.

e The provisions of section 135 of the Act relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are
not applicable to the Company.

e The Company being an unlisted company, details as required to be reported under
section 197(12) of the Act, are not applicable to the Company.

e During the year under review, the whole-time director of the company has not received
any remuneration from the holding company. Hence, the disclosure as required under
section 197(14) of the Act is not applicable.

¢ Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as required under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to your Company.

e There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year against the Company.
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¢ There was no one-time settlement entered into with any Bank or financial institutions in
respect of any loan taken by the Company.

e During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the Statutory Auditors to
the Board under section 143(12) of the Act.

e The provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Act regarding establishment of vigil
mechanism are not applicable to the Company.

e Pursuant to the ‘The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013’, the Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment
at Workplace and has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee. No case was
reported during the year under review.

Acknowledgement

The Board places its gratitude and appreciation for the support and co-operation from its
members and other regulators.

The Board also places on record its sincere appreciation for the commitment and hard work put
in by the management and the employees in these trying times.

Cautionary Statement

Some statements in this Report describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates
and expectations may be ‘forward looking’ within the meaning of applicable laws and
regulations. Actual results may differ from those expressed or implied.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Bajaj Finserv Direct Ltd.

Anish Amin
Chairman

Pune: 27 April 2023
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kkc & associates llp

Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Independent Auditor’s Report

To
The Members of
Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited (‘the
Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows forthe year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (‘the Financial Statements’).

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (‘SAs’) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (‘ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the Financial Statements.

Other Information

4, The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the informationincluded in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the Financial
Statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

5. Ouropinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

6. In connection with our audit of the Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

7. TheCompany's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act, with
respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of
allairs, luss and olher comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian accounting
standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8. In preparing the Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Financial Statements

10. Ourobjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
thatincludes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these Financial Statements.

11. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also;

11.1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

11.2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

11.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management. e
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11.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

11.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

14. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ‘Annexure A’ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

15. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

15.1. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

15.2. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

15.3. The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

15.4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.

15.5. Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

15.6. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Reportin ‘Annexure B’.

15.7. Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration
paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions
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of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in
excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act.

16. WIth respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

16.1. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position as
at 31 March 2023 - Refer Note 37 to the Financial Statements;

16.2. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

16.3. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

16.4. The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

16.5. The Management has represented, to best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding
Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

16.6. Based on such audit procedures, that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, performed by us, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representation under para 16.4 and 16.5 contain any material misstatement.

16.7. The Company has not paid and / or declared dividend during the year.
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16.8. Pravisn tn Rule 3(1) of the Companles (Accaunts) Rules, 2014 for malntalning hooks of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audlt trall (edit log) facility is
applicable to the Company with effect from 1 April 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule
11(g) of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended
31 March 2023.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Standalone Financial Statements of Bajaj
Finserv Direct Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred Lo in parapraph ‘14’ under ‘Report on Other | egal and Regulalory Requiremenls’ section of our
report of even date)

i. (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(b)

iii.  (a)

(b)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment (‘PPE’).

The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets,

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by which all PPE are
verified every year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the programme, PPE
were physically verified by the Management during the year. In our opinion, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the company, it does not hold any immovable properties (other
than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee). Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable
to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not revalued its PPE {including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company and as stated in Note No. 38 to the Financial
Statements, no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding
any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Companyisin
business of distribution of financial products through digital means and does not have any
physical inventories. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not been sanctioned any working capital limits at any point of time during the year, from banks
or financial institutions which are secured on the basis of any security, Accordingly, paragraph
3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the
nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(a), 3(iii)(c), 3(iii)(d) and 3(iii)(e)
of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The company has not provided
any guarantees security and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in
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the nature of loans and guarantees. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(b) is not applicable to that
extent.

(c) Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans or advances in nature of loans to Promoters / Related Parties (as defined
in section 2(76) of the Act) which are either repayable on demand orwithout specifying any terms
or period of repayment. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii)(f) is not applicable to the Company.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not granted any loans covered, made any investments or provided any guarantees and securities
under Section 185 and Section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the public during
the yearin terms of directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India or the provisions of Sections 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
section 148 of the Act for any of the services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph
3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vii.

(@) Inouropinionand accordingto the information and explanations given to us, amounts deducted/
accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues have generally
been regularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, Goods and Services Tax, duty
of customs, cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) We confirm that there are no dues of Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and any other statutory dues, which have not been deposited to/with the appropriate
authority on account of any dispute.

viii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, we confirm that we have not come across any
transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix. (a) Inouropinionand according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any loans or other
borrowings from any financial institutions, banks, government and dues to debenture holders or
in payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. Hence, reporting under clause
(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

e N
-y \
SR

£ N
{ (43 KN\ N
((:'\T" / chartered \\ A\
U( Accountants | |

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India \\/,!:\ /‘3 ;
T:+912261437333 E:info@kkcllp.in W: www.kkcllp.in LLPIN: AAP-2267 N &

— -

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India



kkc & associates llp

Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority or any other lender.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilized term loans
at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is nol
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that no
funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint venture, Accordingly, paragraph
3(ix)(e) & 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and procedures
performed by us, the Company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph
3(x)(a) of the orderis not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not made any preferential allotment / private placement of shares / fully / partly / optionally
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under paragraph 3(x)(b) of the
orderis not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there has been no
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company that has been noticed or reported during
theyear nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. Accordingly, reporting
under paragraph 3(xi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) Asrepresented to us by the Management, there are no whistleblower complaints with respect to

(a)

financial reporting matters received by the Company during the year.

In our oplnion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
nota Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date, for the period
under audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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xvi. (a) Inour opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtalning a valld CoR from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (‘CIC’) as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India.

(d) Accordingto the information and explanation given to us, in the group (in accordance with Core
Investment Companies (CICs) (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) there are 17 companies forming
part of the promoter/promoter group of the Company which are CICs. Further, asinformed these
CICs are unregistered CICs as per Para 9.1 of Notification No. RBI/2020-21/24 dated 13th August
2020 of the Reserve Bank of India.

xvii. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has incurred cash losses
in the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. The amount of cash loss is
Rs. 0.80 crores and previous year Rs. 55.01 crores.

xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
paragraph 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

XiX. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that thisis not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

XX, According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the provision of CSR is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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XXi. The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture company and is not
required to prepare consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xxi) of the
Orderis not applicable to the company.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621

L ot s 50 Ck""'"\
: NGA

}h’\ / hartered @

Soorej Kombath ° @0”“““‘5

Partner \ J

ICAl Membership No: 164366

UDIN: 23164366BGYKTN8076

Place: Pune
Date: 25 April 2023

Sunshine Tower, Level 19, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai 400013, India
T:+9122 6143 7333 E: info@kkcllp.in W: www.kkcllp.in LLPIN: AAP-2267

Suite 52, Bombay Mutual Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Road, Fort, Mumbai 400001, India



kkc & associates llp

Chartered Accountants
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditors’ report on the Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Direct
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph ‘15.6’ under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Financial Statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’).

Opinion

1. We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements of Bajaj
Finserv Direct Limited (‘the Company’) as at 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

2. Inouropinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to the Financial Statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as
at 31 March 2023, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘the Guidance Note’).

Management’s responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

3. TheCompany’s managementis responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s responsibility

4. Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference
to the Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing (‘SA), prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements.
Those SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to the Financial Statements were established and maintained and whether such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

5. Ourauditinvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to the Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements included obtaining
an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
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auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficienl and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

7. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of Financial Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets
that could have a material effect on the Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Financial Statements

8. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to the Financial
Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For KKC & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP)

Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621
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BAJAJ FINSERYV DIRECT LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCII 2023

In T crore
Particulars Note No. As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current asscts
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 596l 3243
Intangible assets 3 80 04 729
Intangible ngsoty undur develupmunt 3 038
Financial Assets
Livestinieniy 4 48 83
Other financial assets 5 665 1173
Other non-current assets 6 319 382
198.32 111.24
Current assets
Financial Assets
Investments 4 44993 527.56
Trade receivables 7 3825 3262
Cash and cash equivalents 8 496 3808
Other financial assets 5 953 127
Current tax assets (net) 1.36 2.74
Other current assets 6 25.23 17.74
529.26 620.01
Total Assets 727.58 731.25
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 9 312 312
Instruments entirely equity in nature 10 803.41 803 41
Other equity 11 (205.66) (153.56)
Total equity 600.87 652.97
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Lease liabilities 15 31.26 14.21
Provisions 12 0.33
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 13 - -
31.59 14.21
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Lease liabilities 15 12.15 642
Trade payables 14
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 362 2.34
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 14 46 6.34
Other financial liabilities 15 5293 39.40
Other current liabilities 16 10.89 882
Provisions 12 1.07 0.75
95.12 64.07
Total Equity and Liabilities 727.58 731.25
Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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BAJAJ FINSERV DIRECT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

In X crore
Year ended Year ended
[P0y s+ 1, o pe
S Mote/ho: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(I) |Revenue from contracts with customers 17 357 86 203.13
(Il) |Other income 18 33.28 4.2]
(111 [Total income (1+11) 39114 207.34
(1V) |Eapenses
Employee benefits expense 19 182.04 125.50
Finance costs 20 220 126
Depreciation and amortisation expense 21 53.89 3277
Other expenses 22 204.98 135.40
Total expeunses 443.11 294.93
(V) |Loss before tax (III-1V) (51.97) (87.59)
(VI) |Tax expense
Current tax - -
Deferred tax = =
Total tax expense 23 - -
(VII) | Loss for the period (V-VI) (51.97) (87.59)
(VII1)|Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans (0.37) 091
Tax impact on above = =
(IX) |Other comprehensive income for the period (net of tax) (VII+VIII) (0.37) 0.91
Total comprehensive income for the period (52.34) (86.68)
(X) |Basic and diluted Earnings per share (in Z) 24 (166.57) (349.41)
(Nominal value per share X 10)
Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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BAJAJ FINSERYV DIRECT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

A. Equity share capital

In T crore
teular Year ended Year ended
Bticulirs Note N | ) Mardh 2023 31 March 2022
At the hoginning of the year 117 280
Changes in equity share capital during the year 62
Balance as af 31 March 2023 9 3.12
B. Instruments entirely equity in nature
In € crore
. Year ended Year ended
Particulars NoteNo- | 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Al the beginning of the year 803 41 176 10
Addition during the year - 62731
Balance as at 31 March 2023 10 803.41 803.41
C. Other equity
Current year
In ¥ crore
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Nole No. B ) . Share based Total other equity
Securities premium | Refained earnings
payments reserve
Retained earnings
At the beginning of the year 2.07 (158.38) 275 (153.56)
Received during the year «
Loss for the year - {5197 - (5197
Recognition of share based payments to employees - - 024 024
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - (037) - (037)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 11 2.07 (210.72) 2.99 (205.66)
Previous year
Reserves and surplus
i . T . H
Particulars Note No - ) ) . Share based otal other equity
Securities premium | Retained earnings
payments reserve
Retained earnings
At the beginning of the year - (71.70) 232 (69.38)
Received during the year 207 - 207
Loss for the year - (8759) (87 59)
Recognition of share based payments to employees - - 043 043
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) - 091 - 091
Balance as at 31 March 2022 i 2,07 (158.38) 2.75 (153.56)
Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
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BAJAJ FINSERV DIRECT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

in & crore
Particulars For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I. Operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax (51.97) (87.59)
Adjustiments for:
Depreciation and amortisation . (53.89) (32.77)
Amortisation of (premium)/discount on acquisition of debt securities on inw 11.57 -
Remeasurement (gain)/loss on defined benefit plans 0.37 (0.91)
Net gain/ (loss) on sale of assets 0.19 0.06
Net gain/ (loss) on sale of financial instruments 6.27 3.51
Interest expense on fair valuation of deposits (0.30) (0.18)
Interest on lease liabilities (2.20) (1.26)
Interest income on investments 12.60 E
Securities premium reserve - 2.07)
Share based payments reserve (6.91) (5.42)
Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss (0.31) 0.31
(32.61) (38.73)
Cash from operation before working capital changes (19.36) (48.86)
Warking capifal.changes
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (5.63) 825
(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances (16.47) (18.19)
(Increase)/decrease in trade payables 9.40 4.11
Increase/(decrease) in current financial liabilities 13.53 2391
Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities 2.07 (13.01)
Increase/(decrease) in other non current liabilities - .
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 0.65 0.38
3.55 5.45

Income-tax paid including tax deducted at source (net of refunds) 1.39 (1.19)
Net cash (used)/generated in operating activities (A) (14.42) (44.60)

Carried forward (14.42) (44.60)
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BAJAJ FINSERYV DIRECT LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASII FLOWS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCII 2023

in ¥ crore
N For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Brought forward (14.42) (44 60)
I1. Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (13.56) (10.63)
Sales proceeds of property, plant and equipment 3.07 1.09
Purchases/internal development to intangibles (43.98) (30.10)
Purchase of investments measured at amortised cost (821.21) .
Sale of investments measured at amortised cost 349.93 -
Investment in Fixed Deposits (100.00)
Proceeds from redemption of fixed deposits 100.00 .
Interest received on investments 2.05 -
Sale of investments measured at FVTPL 1,041.38 36530
Purchase of investments méasured at FVTPL (523.77) (867.93)
Net cash generrated from/ (used in) investing activities (B) (6.09) s (542.27)
III. Financing activities

Deemed equity contribution from holding company - 627.31
Proceeds from issue of share capital - 0.61
Payment of lease liability (12.61) (5.57)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) (12.61) 622.35
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (33.12) 35.48
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 38.08 2.60
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year [Refer note 8] 4.96 3808

As per our report of even date
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

i Corporate information

Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited (the “Cowmpany”) is u public company limited by shares, domiciled in India
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, The Company was incorporated on
7 February 2014 and started commercial operation on 1 July 2018. The Company is engaged in business of
distribution of financial products through digital means. The Company is registered with Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI) as a composite Corporate Agent for distributing
life insurance and general insurance products in India and also is a Registered Investment Advisor (RIA)
under SEBI regulations. The Company’s registered office is at Bajaj Auto Limited Complex, Mumbai-
Pune road, Pune, Maharashtra, India. The parent of the Company is Bajaj Finserv Ltd (hereinafter referred
to as “Holding Company” or “parent”).

The financial statements were approved for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on
25 April 2023,

2 Summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Company
Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) read together with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions
of the Act, on an accrual basis.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial assets and
financial liabilities which have been measured at fair value or amortized book value.

The financial statements are presented in X, which is also the Company’s functional currency and all the
values are rounded off to the nearest crore, except when otherwise indicated.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III (Division II) to the Act. Based on the nature of
products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current
or non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

1) Use of estimates, judgements and assumptions

Estimates and assumptions used in the preparation of these financial statements and disclosures
made therein are based upon Management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of
the date of the financial statements, which may differ from the actual results at a subsequent date.
The following are items which are more likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and
assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about
each of these estimates is included in the relevant notes together with information about basis of
calculation for each affected line item in the financial statements:

a) Provision for employee benefits

b) Provision for tax expenses

¢) Residual value and useful life of property, plant and equipment
d) Valuation of investments.




Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

2) Revenue recognition

Under Ind AS 1135, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance ohligation is satisfied,
i.c. when ‘control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction
price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price
of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts
and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract

a) Revenue from sale of services

)

ii)

i)

Income from distribution of financial products

Income from distribution of financial products is earned by selling of services and products
of other entities under distribution arrangements. The income so earned is recognised on
successful sales on behalf of other entities subject to there being no significant uncertainty of
its recovery.

Income from manpower supply services
Income from manpower supply services is recognized as and when services are rendered and
it becomes due on contractual terms with the parties.

Income from providing software services
Income from providing software services is recognized after the services are rendered and
they become due on contractual terms.

Income from sale of value added services
The Company recognizes Income from sale of value added services on rendering of services.

b) Other income
The Company recognises income on accrual basis,

3) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation / amortisation

A. Property, plant and equipment

)

ii)

iii)

Cost represents all expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working
condition capable of operating in the manner intended. Such cost includes the cost of
replacing part of the plant and equipment, if the recognition criteria are met. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at regular intervals and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.




Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

B. Depreciation and amortisation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

i. a,  Depreciation is provided on u pro rala basis on straight linc method to allocatc the
cost, net of residual value over the estimated useful lives of the assets.
b.  Where a significant component (in terms of cost) of an asset has an estimated
economic useful life shorter than that of its corresponding asset, the component is
depreciated over its shorter life.

ii.  Depreciation on additions is being provided on pro rata basis from the month of such
additions.

iii.  Depreciation on assets sold, discarded or demolished during the year is being provided
upto the month in which such assets are sold, discarded or demolished.

C. Intangible assets and amortization thereof

Intangible assets, representing softwares are initially recognised at cost and subsequently carried
at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment.

Expenditure incurred on development of internally generated intangible assets, is recognised as
an intangible asset, if and only if the future economic benefits attributable to the use of such
know-how are probable to flow to the Company and the costs/expenditure can be measured
reliably.

The intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period of five years,

which is the Management’s estimate of its useful life. The useful lives of intangible assets are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

4) Investments and financial assets

(i) Classification
The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

‘e those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,
or through profit or loss), and
e those measured at amortised cost.

The classification is done depending upon the company’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets classified as “measured at fair value”, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or other comprehensive income, as elected. For assets classified as “measured at amortised cost”, this will
depend on the business model and contractual terms of the cash flows.

(ii) Measurement
Initial Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value including, in the case
of “a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss”, transaction costs that are directly
i attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at
;)5 SO C\\ “fair value through profit or loss” are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. However, trade
—

- k”’\ ) receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction price.
C?.':’,-‘He,red (({)\

ﬂ":-'cﬁ'tmfar”l-_;




Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Subsequent Measurement

subscquent measurement of financlal assets depends on the Company’s business model [or
managing the financial asset and the cash flow characteristics of the financial asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the company classifies its financial instruments:

Subsequently measured at amortised cost:
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost e.g.
Debentures, Bonds etc. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. A gain or loss on a
financial asset that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in investment income using the effective interest rate method.

Subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss: Financial assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost, are measured at fair value through profit or loss e.g. investments in
mutual funds. A gain or loss on a financial asset that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the Statement of Profit
and Loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises.

The Company has designated investments in mutual funds as at FVTPL. Debt instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the profit and loss.

(iii) Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its
financial assets carried at amortised cost for e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables
and bank balances. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide for the same in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company

determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial

recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for

impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a

—— subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a

S R\ significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising

fex 7~ 0N /\\ impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.
f Char
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‘-.C_‘L T Or /




,-/-' \\

Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life ol y financial instrument. The 12-manth TCIL is a partion of the lifetime ECL which
results trom default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date:

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘other expenses’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

* Financial assets measured at amortised cost and revenue receivables: ECL is presented as
an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off
criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying
amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an
analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely
basis.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart
from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified. The Company did not reclassify any of
its financial assets in 2021-22 and 2022-23.

(v) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when Company has transferred the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial asset or the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have
expired. Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases,
the financial asset is derecognised.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, and in case of loans and borrowings, payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company
that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.




Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial rccognition at fair value through profit or loss ure
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied.
For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk
are recognized in OCI. These gains/loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of
such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss, The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

6) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment at each reporting date and also whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
7) Employee benefits

a) Privilege leave entitlements

Privilege leave entitlements are recognised as a liability, in the calendar year of rendering of
service, as per the rules of the Company. The liability for accumulated leave which can be
availed and/or encashed at any time during the tenure of employment is recognized using the
projected unit credit method at the actuarially determined value by an appointed actuary. The
liability for accumulated leave which is eligible for encashment within the same calendar year is
provided for at prevailing salary rate for the entire unavailed leave balance as at the balance sheet
date.

b) Gratuity
Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity
fund, which fully covers the same under Cash Accumulation Policy and Debt fund of the Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ltd. (BALIC).

D ( .‘\

- o f ‘~3<<;:r:\.‘;\ However, any deficit in plan assets managed by LIC and BALIC as compared to the liability on
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
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The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the cnd of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuarics using the

projected unit credit method in conformity with the principles and manner of computation
specified in Ind AS 19.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Employee stock option scheme

Stock options are granted to eligible employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2018 as
formulated by Bajaj Finserv Limited (“Holding Company”). The scheme is administered through
Bajaj Finserv Employee Stock Option Trust (“The Trust”). The mode of settlement of the scheme
is through equity shares of the holding company. The options so granted are accounted for based
on fair value basis in accordance with the “Guidance Note on Accounting for Employee Share
based Payments” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). The fair
value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes model which takes into account the
exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected volatility of the
underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the
option. Further, cost of such options i.e Option premium, which is reimbursed to the holding
company is accounted in line with Ind AS 102 “Share based payments.

Defined contribution plans

The Company contributes to two defined contribution plans for its employees:

- Contribution to provident fund is made to Government Provident Fund Authority

- Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident Fund
Authority

The Company recognises contribution payable to these fund/ schemes as an expenditure, when an
employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable
to the scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance
sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

8) Taxes

a)

b)

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961; and the Income
Computation and Disclosure Standards prescribed therein. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisig L,_yyhele
appropriate.




Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

c) Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising between the tax basc of asscts and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deterred tax is determined using
lax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are
expecled (0 apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is
settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary
differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

9) Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past events, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for a
contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but
probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

10) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lcase
payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilitics recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of

/5500
y/4 ’()?--7’—--9/_: N\ the asset.

RV ‘(?h‘-ﬁ!}i\ 3\ The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairie e lo the accounting policies in para 6.
g Accoun}a"hl;s) m\) Impairment of non-financial assets.
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

i) Tease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do riot depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

11) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities
of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

12) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period.
The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and all periods
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity
shares that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding without a corresponding change in
resources. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of share outstanding
during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

13) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentational currency
The financial statements are presented in % which is also functional currency of the company.,

'_I,./'Z'.'_:::S—c')‘?.“_':_\.\ Transactions and balances
y/d 22 —~.Ux'_ﬁ\‘_-..\ Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the functional currency at the spot rate of
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated into the functional
currency at the spot rate of exchange at the reporting date. All differences arising on non—trading
activities are talken to other income/expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.

14) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
® Level 1 —Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
¢ Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable.

The Company has set policies and procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value
measurement of financial assets, which includes valuation techniques and inputs to use for each case.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes (o financial statements for the yenr ended 31 March 2023

I Investment carrlesl aE amartised enst

In Certlficate of Deporlts A

Quoted

Export Import Bank of Indiu

Axis Bank

Bank ol Banxls

Punjab National Bank

Canura Bank

TIDFC Bank

Nutional Bank for Agricullurel & Rural Development
Amorilsed Cost

In Bonds & Debenfures

Quoted

Power Finance Corporation

National Bank for Agricultural & Rural Development
Rural Electrification Corporation

ICICI Bank

Axis Bank

Amoriised Cost

11 Investment carried at Fair Value through profit and loss

Tnvestment in Mutsal Funds

Quoted

28874 561 (31 March 2022 :223479 467) Nippon India Liquid Fund
Nil (31 March 2022 :360299.462 ) L& T Mutual Fund

Nil (31 March 2022 :309096 564) SBI Liquid Mutual Fund

Nil (31 March 2022 :260545 234) UTI Liquid Cash Plan

Nil (31 March 2022 :133063.669) Kolak Liquid Mulual Fund

Nil (31 March 2022 :213955 477) IDFC Liquid Mutual Fund

Fair Value

Aggregate markel value of quoted Invesiments
Al lnvestimenta mentivned aliove are within Inilia

Non-current

neiil assets

5 Oilied

(Unsecured, good, unless stated otherwise)

Securily deposit

Interest accrued on investments

6 Other assets

(Upsearesd, gisil, witless

Advances recoveruble In cash or kind
Advances to rclated parties
Unsecured considered good

Provision for doubiful advences

Graluity (refer note 27)
Other receivable

Note: Advances (o relaled parties contribute (o 54 96% of (olal advances as on March 31, 2023 (March 31, 2022: 96 86%)

A al As nt
AL Msh ez A1 ATl 31 Mueh 2023 31 March 2022
In Ecrune U B erose in @ crore In®crora
2433
4764
2495
2475
2437
2495
. B51
194.54
4499
2433 49 58
2450 4476
6505
- 1
48.83 - 239.49
- 1590 11636
S S 10503
o 5 10302
- = 90 88
o o 5726
o - 55.01
15.9¢ 527.56
48.83 - 449.93 527.56
Non-current Current
At Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
In ® crore in € crore In®crore In € crore
463 173 100 127
202 - 853 o
6.65 1.1 9.53 1.27
Mo Current Cairremt
Asal Asal
31 Murvh 2023 31 Muich 2021 31 Mandi 2033 31 Munwh 2022
In ® crore In € crore In ®crora In ¥ crora
072 185
059 006
131 191
131 191
. 147
319 382 23.92 14.36
3.19 3.82 2523 17.14
===
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Notes to financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2023

T Trade veceivabiles '
Al visdilerealmivhl, e shutval utfere b )

Chrren

Aval
H Ny 2ikza B Sl 21122
In€crore e

Receivables

- lowards distribution of thind party products 24 82 1826
- lowards sale ol sollware services 1259 K37
- towards manpower supply services ndl 4Mm
~olhers Ol | i
e tlii 25 13601

As il
Contract bulances 23 31 Mareh f02
I 8 croee I # erorn

Trade receivables

Accounts receivable are recognised when the right Lo consideration becomes unconditional Contrnet libility relates to payments received in advance of performance under the contreact

Nov il o o4y receivable are due fram direcions or other ofticers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person Noi ay trade or other receivable are due trom (irms or privale compamics respectively in which any director is o partner, o

direclin vt s manber.

Truade recely ubles agelng schedule

Not due Lessthun & 6 months - 1 year More than | year
months
31 March 2023
Undisputed trede receivab pood 3342 483 = -
Unbilled dues o - . o
31 March 2022
Undisputed trade reoeivablos — considered good 3222 040
Unbilled dues e

8 sl eash equivalents

Oulstanding for following periods fram duc dufe of payment

Total

38,25

32,62

Current
Asat
31 Murch 2023 31 Murch 2022
In ¥ crore In € crors
Balances with banks
an current accounts 456 AL
4.96 A8
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Liquity shave capiinl

Authorised
35,060,000 equity shares ot 2 10 cach

Issued, subscvibed amd Jully patid-up shares
VLA ity e ol ® 1L

R iation of the shures ing ut the

and At the end of the yenr

Equity shares

Althe beginning of [he yeur
Lzquity shares 1ssued during the ye:
Outstuudbng at the end of (e yenr

Term«/righis attached 1o equlty shares

The Company hus only ane class of equil
Directors and approved by the shareholders in the annual general meeting is pa

preferential amounts The distribution will be m proportion o the number of equits

Detalls of shareholders holding more thun §% shares in the Company

Equity shares of T 10 cuch fully paid

Bajsj Finserv Ltd
Bajaj Finance Lid

Detally of promoter shareholding

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
Promoter nume

Haje Freery 16l

_Asat
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
in ¥ crode W Eerore
350

EN P Jle
212
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 N
Nos, In X crore Nos. o YLerare
31,20,000 3 25,00,000 250
6,20,000 062
31,20,000 J.12 31,20,000 312
.

hares hoving a par value o 2 10 per share Jach holder ol equity shures is entitled to one vote pet share The inlerim dividend declared by the Board of Directors and the disidend proposed by the Board of
n [ndian rupecs: In the eventof liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares will b entitled (o receite remuining ossets of the Company, alter distribution ol all
shares held by the shareholders

Instroments entively equity §

Balance as af the beginning of the year
Add: Addition during the year
Closing balance

= As at As at
31 March 2023 31 Muireh 1072
N, % Holdbng Mo, 2 Hliling
25,00,000 80 13% 25,00,000 80 13%
6,20,000 19 87% 6,20,000 1987%
As at Asat
31 Mureh 2023 31 March 2022

Nos % Holding % Change during Nas, % Holding % Change during the

the vear _ Aear

25,00,000 80.13% 0.00% 25,00,000 80 13%

As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
In crore In €crore
80341 17610
- 62731
803.d1 803.41

Represents loan amount received by the Company from Bajaj Finserv Limited 3522 94 crore and Bajaj Finance Limiled 2280 47 crore Any loan amount which is outstanding at the end of the loan tenure is compulsorily convertible into equity shares

Other equity

Reserves and surplus ;
Securliles premium
Balance as at llie beginning of (he year
Add: Received during the year

o i securilhes prenvitii reserve

Retained earnings

Bilutse i w e begimiing of the venr

Profit/(loss) for the year

Items ol other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained eamings
Actuarial gains/losses of defined benefit plans

Less: Approprialions

Balunce in retained camings

Share hased pavments reerve

Balance as at the beginning ol the vear
Recogmition of share based payments 1o employ ees
Balance in share based payments resene

Nature and purpose of reserve :

Sccuritles premium

As at
31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
In €crore In € crore
207

- 207

207 207
(158 38) 7170
5197 (87 59)
037 091
(210.72) (158.38)
275 23
0.24 043
299 275
(205.66) (153.56:

Securilies premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares The reserye can be utilised only for limited purposes in oeeordance with seclion 52 and other provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013

Retained earnlngs

Retained eamings represents the sutplus in profit and loss account and appropriations

The Company recognises change on account of remieasurement of the net defined benelit lisbilityA(assel) os parl of relained eamings with separate disclosure, which comprises of:

- acluarial gains and Josses;
- retum on plan assets, excl

ing amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(axset); and

- any change in the effeet of the assel ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability/(assct)

Share based payments resene

Share based payments reserve is created as required by [nd AS 102 - *Share Based Payments on the Jimployee Stock Option Scheme

Ch arlereq
Accoyn tanig

&)
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Notes to financial stalements for (he year ended 31 March 2023

— Current
Avar )
31 March 2022 31 March 2023 S Mareh
My Teruin In ¥ crore In 2 crore
Provision for employee benefits [See note 27|
Provision o eratnty 031 -
Provtsn (e compensated ahsemies a - 1.07 U /1>
0.33 - 107 075
13 Deferted (ax liabilities (ne)
As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

In € crore In ¥ crore

Deferred tux liabilities
On aecount ol liming dilference in
Retiral und other beneti

Delined benelit plans provisions - OCI [ 426
Il nbintiviia
Fair valuation of mutual funds including FMP 002 010
Gruss deferred tax linbilities 010 036

Befirred tax imsein

Recognized (o the extent of Deferred tax liability N 010 036

Gross deferred 1nx wssels 010 036

The Company oflsels tax and liabilities if and ouly il it has a legally enforceable right (o sel ol current lax asscls and current (ax liabililics and the deferred tax assets and delerred ta liabilities relate W income laxes levied by (he same tax authority
Defiared tox assels are recoguised for unused tax losses ta the extent that it is probable that Laxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised Significanl munagement judgement is required Lo delermine the amount ol delerred 1ax assets
(hat cun be recognised, based upon (e liming und the level of future laxable profits together wilh future tax planning strategies

The Company has brought forward tax Jusses These losses relate to brought lorsard business losses and unabsorbed depreciation “The Company neither has any taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunitics uv ailable that could partly
support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets, On this basis, the Company has determined thal it cannot recognise deferred 1ax assets on the tax losses brought [orwvard

14 Trade payahles

As at
31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
In ¥ crore In € crore
‘Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smakl enlerprises 362 2)
Tolal outstanding dues of creditors other thun micro enlerprises and small enterprises 14 46 634
18.08 8.68
Trade payables ageing schedule
Partivalurs Oulstanding for followlng perinds from due dute of payment
Not due Lens thun 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Taotal
31 March 2023
MSME 362 . 362
Others 1387 057 002 . 14.46
31 March 2022
MSME 2 - - . 234
Others 603 03l . . 634
There are no disputed dues
15 Other Tinpncial linbilities
Non-current Current
As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 Murch 2023 31 March 2022
In€erore In Ecrore In € crore In € crare
Lease ligbility [See note 35] 3126 142} 1215 642
Employee benelits pay uble . . 1843 1438
Other payobles* - = 34.50 25.02
31.26 14.21 65,08 45.82
Refer note 32 for [inanciat liabilities measured al amortised cost
*Other payables comprises of liubility for expenses, salary payable and income received in advance
16 Other current liabilities
As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
In®crore In®crore
1089 842
10.89 8.82




Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Noltes (o financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

17 Revenue from contract with customers

For the Vear emliad

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
In € crore In®crore
Reyenue from contraet with customers
T e or Sers fees
Tncome from distribution of third purty products
Related parties* 2721 10131
Others 074 075
Revenue [rom sollware services 8502 6237
Manpewer supply services 4489 3729
Salit vl vl sdhdun] sepvmes 1.39
Totnl revenue from contract with customery 357.86 203.13
* Includes insurance income T 2 17 crore (31 March 2022 : 2 32 crore)
Geographlesl murkels
India 35786 20113
Outside Indin — .
Totul revenuc from contruct with customers 357.86 203.13
Timing of revenuc recognition
Services transferred at a point in (ime 357 86 202 16
Hierveees frafyfariod aves i 097
Total revenue from contract with customers 357.86 203.13

18 Other income

Fur ihe vear ended

1 Murch 2023 31 Murch 2022
In ¥ crore In €crore

Interest income on fixed depasils 153

Interest income on bondv/debentures 1107

Amortisation o premium/discount on investment 1157
Interest on income tax refund 020 010
Ghin on veluatien and gain on realisation of mu(ual funds measured al FVTPL 596 382

Provision no longer required 241 .
Others 054 029
33.28 4.21
19 Employee benefits expense
For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
In®€crore In € crare
Salaries, wages and bonus (o employces hod 74 LR
Contribulion to provident and other funds [See note 27] (311 s}
Share based payment to employees [See note 34] 6| 540
Staff welfare expenses 139 247
14204 12550
For the year endyd

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
In ¥ crore In € crore
Interes! on lease liabilities [See note 35] 220 126
2.20 1.26

EXpenye

Fur thi year eniled

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

In € crore . In®crora

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 1669 829
Amounlt amortised against intangible assels 3720 2448

[Sec note 3] 53.89 2717




Bajaj Finscrv Direct Limited

Notes (o financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

22 Other ex pc_nses

___ Forthe year ended
31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022

In €crore In ¥ crare
Advertisement, branding and sales promotion 7507 6544
Tnformation Technology expenses 41,05 st
Ouistunehig 7 buck umiee enpeinas 3645 1062
Dealer meentive 1901 1023
Business seppoit clrges 1302 524
Travelling expenses 43 085
Training and conference 236 013
Repairs and mainlenance 215 089
Prolessional and legal consultancy 211 200
Insurance 208 118
Proswr, fuel, wwater el ounpatiulyles 147 064
Subscription ond lees 057 164
Poyment to auditor [O]] oll
Rent [See nole 35] 024
Miscellancous expenses 408 130
204.98 135.40

Payment to auditor
Firr the yvar ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
As audltor
Audil fee 010 010
Othier setvices (cetlification fees and other matters) i 001 001
0.11 ) 0.11
23 Tax

For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
In ®crora In€crora

(@) Tax expense

Current tax

Current lax on profits for the year
Adjustments for current Lax of prier periods
Tolal current tax expense

Deferred tax
Decrease/(increase) in defered lax assels ©.10) (0 36)
(Decrease)/increase in deferred (ax liabililies 010 036
Total deferred (ax expenses/(benefit)
Tux expenscs

(b) Reconclllatlon of tax expenses and the nccounting profit mulilplied by Indla's tux rate
Profit before lax (5197) (87 59)

Tax al the Indian tax rate of 26% (Previous year - 26%)
Tax effect of emounts which are deductible (non taxable) in calculating (axable income:

- Income from fair valuslion of mulual funds
Tax expense

24 Enrnings P'ev Share (E1'S

For the your ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
& Profit / (loss) for the year (¥ crore) 5197 (87 59
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (Nos) (Basic) 31,20,000 25,06,795
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (Nos) (Diluted) 32,74,10,400 21,22,39,508
b Eamings per share
Basic and Diluted T (166 57) (34941}
Face value per share ¥ 10 - 10
The Company has ding loan which is lsorily ible into equily shares Since the potential equity shares are anti-dilutive in nature, they are not considered for the calculation of Diluted Earnings per share
25 -anilni commifents
As ut
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
In €crore In®€crore
Capilal commitments
- lowards acquisition of Inlangibles 406 809
- lowards acquisilion of Property, plant and equipments 119 010
5.25 8.19

26 Expenditure in faveign curvency

For the yeatr il

I1 Wareh 2023 31 Marcly 2032
In ®crare In @ crore
Information technology expenses 306 219

Sales promotion expenses 023




Bajaj Finsery Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

27 Employee benelits

Liabilily for employee benefils has been delermined by an acluary, appoinled for the purpose in conformily with Ihe principles sel oul in lhe Indian Accounting

Siandard 18 (he detajls of which are s hareanider;

Funded schemes
Gratuity :

The Company provides for graluily paymenls lo employees The graluity benefit payable {o the employees of lhe Company is greater of the provisions of the Payment
of Gratuily Act, 1972 and the Company's graliily scheme Employees who are in conlinuous service for a poriod of 5 years aro oligible for graluily The gratuity plon is

a funded plan and the Company makes contribulions to approved grnluily fund

(i ¥ cids
fin ot 31 Mpr An at i Mnre
At weonnized in Balanco Steat 2023 2022
Gratuily Gratuity |
Present value of funded defined benefil obligalion 674 594
Fairvalue of plan assels (7.04) (7.400)
Net funded obligation {030 [1.44)
Presait value of unfunded defined benslil obligaton - .
Amount not recognized due to asse| lini B 0485 .
Met defined benafit liabllity / {asset) recognizad in balince shest 0.35 {1.48)
Expense recognized in the Statement of profit and loss
Currenl service cosl 156 11
Interesl on nel defined benefil liabilily / (asset) (012) {0.04)
Total expense charged to slatement of profil and loss 1.44 1.07
[Amount recorded as Other Comprebensive Income
Openlig amount i in OCI oulside of profil and loss (4 70) (379)
Remezsuremants during the period due lo
Changes in financial assumplions (0.09) e
Changes in demographic assumptions 012 (0.59)
Experience adjusimenls (0.52) (0.36)
Aclual relurn on plan assels less interest on plan assels 021 006
Adjustmenl to recagnize lhe effect of asset ceiling 065 (0.02)
Cloaing amou cognized in OC| outside statement of | and loss [(4.33) 4.70)
As at 31 Mar Asat 31 Mar
Reconcilistion of net liability [ (asset) 2023 2022
Cpeiing nel defined benefit liabilily / (asset) (1.47) (0.45)
Expense charged lo slalement of profit and loss 1.44 1.07
Amounl recognized oulside stalement of profit and loss 037 (0.91)
Employer conlribulions . (1.46)
Impact of liability assurmned or (sellled)* - 029
| Closing net defined beneflt Nahility { (asset) 03 (1.46)]
As al 31 Mar As at 31 Mar
Movemant in benefit obllgation 2023 2022
Opening of defined benefil obligalion 594 542
Current service cosl 1.56 1.1
Inleresl on defined benefil obligalion 041 0.35
Remeasurements due 10:

Acluarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions (0.09) -

Actuarial loss / (gain) arising from change in demographic assumplions 0.12 (0.60)

Actluarial loss / (gain) arising on account of experience changes (0.52) (0.36)
Benefils paid (0.34) (0.29)
Liabilities assumed / (sellled)* (0.33) 029
Closing of definod benefit abligation .75 592
* On seoount of business combinatien or inter group lransfer

Asat 31 Mar As ot 31 Mar
Movement in plan assets 2023 2022
Opening fair value of plan assets 740 589
Employer conlributions - 1.46
Interest on plan assels 053 040
Remeasurements due lo:

Aclual relumn on plan assels less inleresl on plan assets {0.21) (0.06)
Benelils paid {0.34) (0.28)
Assels acquired / (sellled)* (0.33) =
Chosing falr value ol plan sssets 705 740

* Dn account of business combination or inter group lransfer
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As at 31 Mar Asat 31 Mar |
Disaggregation of assets 2023 2022

Calegory of assets

Quoted value

Neon quoted value

Insurer managed funds 704 740
Grand Total 7.04 7.40

| Sensitivity Analysis

Gratuity 1s a tump sum plan and e cost ol jividing Wese B s ol less sensiiive to small changas in demagraphit assimplinns The key acliarial
nasumphions lo which the benefil ulligativn vesults die pailicutatly sensilive W die QISCOui 1E1g il i Sty sscalalion e TIE following 1401 Simmanzes e
IMpat) 10 percenlane terms an the reported delined henefil obligation at the end of e pge g e ey oo et of s o o e 0 1 rpartor
assumplion by 50 basis points,

As at 31 Mar 2023 As at 31 Mar 2022
Salary lati Di: Salary escalition
raln rate rats ot
Senior staff
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -3.19% 320% -3 38% 3405
impacl of decrease in 50 bps on DBO 3.36% -3.07% 3.58% <. 25%,
Junlar staff
Impact of increase in 50 bps on DBO -321% 3.28% -365% 370N
impact of dacraass in 50 bps on DAO 3:35% «3.13% 3.88% 3675
These ilivities have been 1o show the menl in defined benefil obligalion in isolation and assuming there are no olher changes in markel conditions

at the accounling dale. There have been no changes fram the previous periods in the melhods and assumptions used in preparing lhe sensilivily analyses

Funding arrangement and policy

Tl money conlribuled by lhe Company to the fund 1o finance lhe liabilities of the plan has to be invested

The truslees of the plan have lhe i of the fund lo an insurance company. The inlum lhese funds as
pur the mandale provided lo Ihem by the trusiees and the assel allocation which is wilhin the permissible limits prescribed in the insurance regulalions

Thare is no compulsion on the part of the Company Lo fully pre fund the liability of lhe Plan. The Company's philosophy is lo fund the benefits based on ils own quidity
«nd tax position as well as level of under funding of lhe plan.

Less than Between1-2 Between 2 -§ Ovar &

Total
A year yoars Years Vears
31 Mar 2023
Senior stafl 028 029 084 3.38 479
Junior slaff 045 047 159 4.92 7.43
31 Mar 2022
Senior slaff 042 045 1.30 434 6.52
unior stafi 0.21 028 085 259 393
A et T Az at 31 May A at 31 Mar
i :

Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation (in years) 2023 2022
Gonior Staff 680 654
Junlor Staff 651 660
Principal Actuarial Assumptions (Expressed as Weiuhlad Avarages)
Diszount rate (pa.) 7.45% T.25%
Salary escalalion rale (p.a) - senior slaff 12.00% 12:00%
Salary escalalion rate (p.a.) - junlar stafi 10.50% 10.60%

The eslimates of fulure salary increases, considered in actuarial valualion, lakes inio account, inflation, seniority, promotions and other relevant factors, such as
demand and supply in the employment markel

Compensated absences

The d cover lhe Company's liabilily for casual and earned leave

The liability for accumulated leave which is eligible for encashment wilhin the same calender year is provided for al prevailing salary rale for the entire unavailed leave
balance as at Ihe balance sheel dale

L]
As at 31 Mar As at 11 Mar
2023 2022
1,07 0,75
Provident fund
rCr
As at 31 Mar As at 31 Mar
Particulars 2023 2022
Providegt fund paid to govermment authorilies 348 2.39

Ponsian funsd paid to governmen| authorities 182 0.69
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28 Segment inforiiation

The Compant apetates ok one wperating bustiess segnient sz Distnbution ol finaesal products The Company ix aperating m ool one geagraphical aca e domestic Accordmph tliere 1s only ane veporable busiiess segiment henee sepinet
e ! | | ] ) peogny 2 A gainent
reporning does notapply o the Compan
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Bajaj Finserv Direct Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023

30 Financial risk management

The Company has operations in India. Whilst risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, il is managed through a risk management {ramework, including
ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring subject to risk limits and other controls. The Company’s activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and

nithel risk
Risk Exposure Arising (rom Measurement Management ]
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, financial assets Credit ratings Setting limits on the amount of acceptable risk,
measured at amortised cost and fair value diversification of investment limits, dealing with
through profit or loss creditworthy counterparties only
Trade receivables Credit Limit & No. of overdue days, monitoring of credit limits
Aging analysis
Liguidity Risk Other liabilities Maturity Maintaining sufficient cash/cash equivalents and
analysis marketable securities

The Board of Directors provide guiding principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as, credit risk, liquidity risk,
and investment of available funds.

A. Credit risk
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty may default on its contractual obligations leading to a financial loss to the Company. Credit risk primarily
arises from cash equivalents, financial assets measured at amortised cost, financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss and trade
receivables.

Credit Risk Management

In regard to Trade receivables, which are typically unsecured, credit risk is managed through continuously monitoring the credit worthiness of customers
in the normal course of business. Trade receivables consist of regulated entities with stringent regulation on solvency which significantly mitigates credit
risk.

For other financial assets the Company has an investment policy which allows the Company to invest only with counterparties having a credit rating equal
to or above AA+ and P1+. The Company reviews the creditworthiness of these counterparties on an on-going basis.

B. Liquidity Risk
The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are funds infusion from shareholders, ‘cash and cash equivalents’ and cash flows that are generated from
operations. The Company believes that its working capital is sufficient to meet the financial liabilities within maturity period.

The following table summarises the working capital position of the Company for the current year:

31 March 2023

In Z crore
Current Assets 529.26
Less: Current Liabilities (95.12)
Working Capital 434.14

C. Other risk (Market Risk)
The Company has deployed its surplus funds in debt instruments (including through mutual funds) and money market instruments. The Company is
exposed (o price risk on such investments; which arises on account of movement in interest rates, liquidity and credit quality of underlying securities.
The Company has invested its surplus funds primarily in debt instruments mutual funds with AAA & STABLE Al+ rating and thus the Company does not
have significant risk exposure here.
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31 Capital management

Risk management
The Company is cash surplus and has no capital other than Equity. The Company is not exposed to any regulatory imposed capital
requirements.

The cash surpluses are currently invested in income generating debt instruments (including through mutual funds) and money market
instruments depending on economic conditions in line with the guidelines set out by the management. Safety of capital is of prime
importance to ensure availability of capital for operations. Investment objective is to provide safety and adequate return on the surplus
funds.

The following table summerizes the net capital position of the Company:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
In ¥ crore In ¥ crore
Equity 600 87 652.97
Less: Tangible and other assets |66y 73 97.03
Working capital (excluding investments) (15.79) 28.38
Investments 449.93 527.56

<
Cflad;gd o
?{_ Accountants |
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32 Fair value measurement

i) Financial instruments by category

In 2 crove

31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
- Amortised Amortised
€ FYTPL wocl Cuost FVTPL VO Cost
Financial ussvls
Investmenis

- Liquid mutual funds 1590 - - 527 56 -

- Certificate of Deposits - 194,54 - -

- Bonds & Debentures - - 28832 - - -
Trnde receivihles 3825 - - 32.62
Other finaneial assets - - 16.18 - - 3.00
Cash and cash squivalents - - 496 - - 38.08
Total financial assets 15.90 = 542.25 527.56 - 73.70
Financial liabilities
Lease liability - 4341 - - 20.63
Trade payables = = 18.08 - - 8.68
Other financial liabilities - 5293 - - 3940
Total financial liabilities - - 114.42 - - 68.71
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ii) [Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in delermining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) 1ecognised and measwed al fair value and (b)
monguted at amortised cost and for which fair valucs are disclosed in the financial staements. To provide an indication about the relfabllity of the ipuls used n determming
fair value, the Company has classified its tinancial instruments into the threc levels prescribed under the accounting standaid. An explanation of each level follows underncath
the table

In T crore
Financial assets measured at fair value - recurring fair value measurements at 31 March 2023
Particulars Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Vinancial investments af FY T,
- Liquid mutual funds 4 15.90 - - 1590
Total financial assets 15.90 - - 15.90

In T crore

Financial assets measuved at fir value - recurring fair value measurements at 31 March 2022

Particulars Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial investments at VP,

- Lagguidd mutunl Funds 4 527.56 - - 527.56
Total financinl nssets 527.56 - - 527.56

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
The value of other financial assets is same as their fair value

Valuntion principles

Fair value is the price that would be 1eceived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instrumnents are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as explained below

Level 1: Level | hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices in active markets Quotes would include 1ates/values/valuation 1eferences published
periodically by BSE, NSE elc. basis which trades take place in a linked or unlinked active market. This includes traded bonds and mutual funds, as the case may De, that have
quoted price/rate/value.

Level 2: The fair value of financial inshuments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market
data (either directly as prices or indirectly detived from prices) and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2

Level 3: 1 one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities,
contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

Valuation Technigues used to determine fair value

Valuation Techniques used to determine fair value include
- Open ended mutual funds at NAV's/rates declared and/or quoted
- Close ended mutual funds at NAV's declared by AMF|
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33 Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

In T crore
As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars ' Within 12 months After 12 months Within 12 months After 12 months
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment - 59.61 - 32.43
Intangible assets . 80.04 - 73.26
Financial assets

Investments - 48.83 - -

Other financial assets - 6.65 - 1.73
Other non-current assets - 3.19 - 3.82
Current assets
Financial assets

Investments 449.93 - 527.56 -

Trade receivables 3825 - 32.62 -

Cash and cash equivalents 4.96 - 38.08 -
Other financial assets 9.53 - 1.27 -
Other current assets 25.23 - 17.74 -
Total 527.90 198.32 617.27 111.24
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities 12.15 31.26 6.42 14.21
Provisions - 0.33
Deferred tax liabilities (net) - - - -
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Trade payables 18.08 - 8.68

Other financial liabilities 5293 - 39.40 .
Other current liabilities 10.89 - 8.82 -
Provisions 1.07 - 0.75 =
Total 95.12 31.59 64.07 14.21

Net 432.78 166.73 553.20 97.03
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34 Share-based payments (Employce option plan)

Baja) Finserv Limited (“Holding Company™) has established Employees stock options plan, 2018 (ESOP Scheme) for employees of the company The employee stock option plan. designed
to provide meentives w the etnployees of the company and o deliver long-term retums and 15 an equty settled plan Options granted under ESOP scheme would vest in not less than one
year and not mare than five years from the date of grant of the oplions Under the scheme, the company has granted 1,44,570 sharcs on various dates of T 1 each to its eligible employees
Vesting of the options would be subject to continuous employment with the Company and hence the options would vest with passage of time In addition to this, the company may also
specily certain performance parameters subject to which the options would vest Such options would vest when the performance parameters are met

Once vested, the options remain exercisable over period of eight years from the date of vesting or such period as may be decided by the company at its sole discretion from time to time
Options granted under the plan are for no consideration and carry no dividend or voting rights On exercise, each option is convertible into one equity share

Set out below is a summary of options granted under the plan:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars Number of uptions Number of options
Opening balance 1,53,110 391,750
Granted during the year 1,44,570 -

Excercised during the year 1,72,960 1,98,880
Forfeited durine the yeqr - 39,760
Closing balance 1.24,720 1.53.110

Vested and excercisable -
No options expired during the year

Fair value of options granted

Tranche [

The fair value at grant date of options granted on 16 May 2019 was X 177.10 per option. The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes model which lakes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term
of the option

Tranche I1

The fair value at grant date of options granted on 21 May 2020 was X 159 70 per option The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes model which takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term
of the option

Tranche LI

The fair value at grant date of options granted on 28 April 2021 was 335 00 per option The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes model which takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term
of the option

Tranche [V

The fair value at grant date of options granted on 27 April 2022 was X 509 40 per option, The fair value at grant date is determined using the Black Scholes mode!l which takes into account
the exercise price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected volatility of the underlying share, the expected dividend yield and the risk free interest rate for the term
of the option

The model inputs for options granted are as under

Tranche I Tranche I1 Tranche I11 Tranche 1V
a) options are granted for no consideration and vesting period is: 4 years 4 years 4 years 4 years
b) exercise price: X 761.75 per option T 47021 per option 1,009 14 per option X 1,482 64 per option
c) grant date: 16 May 2019 21 May 2020 28 April 2021 27 April 2022
d) expiry date: 15 May 2023 20 May 2024 28 April 2025 27 April 2026
e) share price at grant date: 2 761.75 2470.21 31,009 14 31,48264
f) expected price volatility of the Company's shares: 3040% 35.56% 36.77% 34.34%-37.99%
g) expected dividend yield: 0.02% 0.05% 0.05% 0.02%
h) risk-free interest rate: 7.56% 6.35% 6.62% 5.35%-6.56%

The expected price volatility is based on the historic volatility (based on the remaining life of the options), adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility due to
publicly available information
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Ind AS 116 - eases: had become appheable ellective sl reporting penod begiming Apnt 12019 1he Company had adupled the

dard begmmng Apul 1, 2009, usmg the modified retiospeetie approach for tanstiwon
Farther, as agamst fease payments of 1109 erore (previans vear 2153 crore), the Compan s recopmzed 2 20 crore (previotis vear 2126 erone) as Fianee costs and 2 10 74 grone (prevaons vear 2 33 crore) amonizatien of Raght 1o ise sssets
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36 ilal_iihuuikcuulurur\ Requircments

1) Rutlos

]— i Numerntor o As ut 31 bl 202 A WUAIM Nl 2012 e Virlaiee Expilanation

b gy Ratio Curent Assels Current Liabilities =] R <A43% Traurains SRRt g il i cash balances
has ed to dexline in the ratio

1143 Retumn on Equity Rutio Net Income Sharcholder’s Equily (©09) 013 36% Deurease itt losses hos led Lo improvenient in the
rutio.

1¥) Trude receivables lumover rutio Revenue Averape necounts receivable 10.10 351 A3 Retler recovery of dues hag renlted in improvement
in the nitio

0D Wby bl o bhavvsimia il Purchoses of services and ollver oxpoisu AVCTHEE e Tuyuhle 1502 w47 25%

11 Net capital tumover ratio Revenie Working Caplui n42 037 126% Increase in revenue hus led to improvemant in the
rulio

1Tk Nt wmlji ratio Net profit Net sales ©15) N 43) 66% Increase in margin has led o improvement in the
atio

401 st on Capitul employad Euming belore interest and tux Capital employed (Tolul Assets - (Do8) 0.13) 39% Decrease in loss has lail 10 imyrovement in the

Current Liubilities) nlio

b Beorerm o e [zaming belone interest and lox Average Operuling assels (a7 ©12 41% Decrease in lass has led lo improvement in the

g,

Debt Equity, Debl Service and Inventory Turnover ratios are not applicable te (he Company, hence nol included (e aforesaid disclosure

11) Relutlonshlp with struck off companies

Liirreil sonr
Nitme of struck off Company Nature of transuctins with struck-ofT  Balunce daii i with the
LaMnghaty strnele ol compiny
Mie
Freuiivi yemi
Namne of struele oft Company MNutiw ol teanvactbons with struck-olf Balunce i Helatlonship with the
compuny sbrueh ol comypuiny
i
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T S "
37 Countingent lnbilities e e ASML
M AT 2025 31 March 2422
(n € crore In Ecrore
Claims against the Company not seknowledged is debts = 002

The Company had received a letter lrom lepal metrology department in 17Y22, alleging non-compliance to Legal Metologs rules The Company has contended o the authorities that the aforesaid rules are duly Tollowed The said liabilities have not arisen

38 “There are no proceedings which huave been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benumi property under the Benami | ransactions (Prohititian) Act, 1988 (45 of' 1988) and the rules made thereunder
39 previous yenar's lignres hnve heen regroupes! and renrmnged swhenever necessary (o conlinn to cuerent year's presentution/clarsi (ication a

n tenms ol our report of even date On behalf of the Board of Directors
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